
Safety and Licensing Committee

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers, 6th Floor5:30 PMWednesday, October 9, 2024

1. Call meeting to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

24-1265 Safety & Licensing Committee Minutes from 09/25/2024
 

S&L Minutes 09-25-24.pdfAttachments:

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

6. Action Items

24-1105 Operator License for Cindy Reed.

Cindy Reed Operator License Application.pdf

Cindy Reed Clerk Letter.pdf

Cindy Reed PD Letter.pdf

Cindy Reed Denial Appeal Memo.pdf

Cindy Reed Documents Submitted to Safety and Licensing.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

9/25/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for denial

Cindy Reed appeared and addressed the committee.

Mark Joosten, 2948 W. 1st Ave, Appleton WI 54914, owner of Eager Beaver, 

appeared and addressed the committee.

The Motion to deny the license failed 1/3.

9/25/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

The Motion to approve the license passed 3/1.

10/2/24 Common Council referred to the Safety and Licensing 

Committee

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 10/4/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24965
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b46409d6-79b4-4c49-9379-b1e4492312cb.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24805
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a972dfd3-5453-4f0e-913c-06acfca3d528.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5b75e097-a0e0-433f-af0f-49af3ab2a4f3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b51795e3-0d51-4e24-80ae-df78efb348a4.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=63fd07d4-13ad-4b6f-a2d2-907e9184aa74.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bd8d01b4-6022-4fbc-88b2-e7b1f1c6f374.pdf


October 9, 2024Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

24-1318 Proposed Special Event Policy - 2025

2025 PROPOSED Special Event Policy.pdf

2025 Special Event Fee Schedule - Appendix 1.pdf

Memo- 2025 Proposed Special Event Policy.pdf

2023 Special Event Cost Summary- S&L.pdf

Current -2024- Special Events License Application.pdf

Attachments:

24-1235 Class "B" Beer and "Class C" Wine License application for MyMy LLC 

d/b/a MyMy, Pa Zao Chang, Agent, located at 2825 Ballard Rd, 

contingent upon approval from the Health and Inspections departments. 
 

MyMy_LLC.Alcohol.Class B_Beer_Class C_Wine.9.9.2024.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

24-0420 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License application for 

Delaires LLC d/b/a Delaire's, David Boulanger, Agent, located at 823 W. 

College Ave, contingent upon approval from the Health and Inspections 

departments.

Delaire's.Alcohol.Class B_Beer_Reserve_Liquor.4.10.24.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

24-1262 Temporary Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Wine License application for 

Photo Opp, John Adams, Person in Charge, located at 621 N. Bateman 

St, on October 18, 19, & 20, 2024 from 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. for Photo 

Gallery/Fundraiser special event, contingent upon approval from the 

Police, Health, and Fire departments. 

Photo_Opp.Alcohol.Temp B_Beer_Wine.Fundraiser.10.18.2024.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

7. Information Items

24-1267 Special Events

- Appleton East Homecoming Parade, Approved Route, October 4th 

2024

- Appleton Parks and Recreation, Flicks & Sips, Jones Park, October 4th 

2024

- Appleton Fire Department - Open House, Fire Station #6, October 5th 

2024

- Appleton Parks and Recreation, Glow in the Park, Pierce Park, 

October 11th 2024

- Johnston Elementary Mustang Mile, Approved Route, October 12th 

2024

- YMCA of the Fox Cities, Freaky 5k, Pierce Park, October 26th 2024

- Appleton Charity Events, Halloween Pub Crawl, Participating 

Downtown Businesses, October 26th 2024

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 10/4/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25018
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7034a4c0-bd08-408e-a6c4-c205f3be176d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ffc29d7f-177f-4160-b886-041ffa2dfc20.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=189eeb63-d4d9-4b82-a531-4e53bc1fe10d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=57bb429f-ecce-45ef-a73a-7dfaaf103982.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=29d412d0-8891-4a9a-af5a-14f74facda39.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24935
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f49cb899-1e9d-441d-9d7d-625769cdb82c.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24121
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=573aade9-ab87-4fea-9b8c-135b6b7f7f18.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24962
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=65cdb8a9-b987-4c30-9b70-5e21eb8422da.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24967


October 9, 2024Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

24-1266 Directors Report

1. City Clerk

2. Fire Chief

3. Police Chief

8. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during 

this meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 10/4/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24966




















CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920.832.6423 
f: 920.832.5962 

www.appleton.org 

 

 
TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee, Common Council  
 
From:  ACA Zak Buruin 
 
Date:  September 12, 2024 
 
RE:  Operator (Bartender) License Renewal Denial Appeal of Cindy Reed 
 

 
Cindy Reed has applied to renew an operator’s (bartender) license and is appealing the denial of 
that renewal application.  Per §125.17(1) of the Wisconsin statutes, the City is required to issue 
an operator’s license any applicant that is qualified under §125.04(5).  The Appleton Police 
Department has learned of information it contends leaves the applicant unable eligibility 
requirements, and that the application must be denied.  
 

Summary 
  
Ms. Reed was convicted of a 4th offense OWI in January of 2024.  This felony offense, along with 
her prior OWI offenses leaves her ineligible for license renewal as both an unpardoned felon and 
a “habitual law offender.”   
 
This disqualification leaves her with the ability to provide evidence of rehabilitation.  It does not 
appear that any documentation that the Committee and Council would be required to accept as 
sufficient evidence of rehabilitation and fitness exists.   
 
Ms. Reed may provide evidence and documentation to show she has been rehabilitated from the 
disqualifying offenses.  The Committee and Council must each consider all relevant evidence 
provided.  The Committee and Council must utilize their judgment to determine if the evidence 
provided constitutes “competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation and fitness to perform the 
licensed activity.”   
 
If the Committee and Council find that competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation and fitness 
to perform the license activity has been presented, the license must be granted (renewed).  If it is 
found that competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation and fitness has not been provided, the 
license may not be granted (renewed). 
 

Discussion: 
§125.04(5) Licensing Requirements 

 
According to §125.04(5)(a)1, in order to be granted a license or permit under Wisconsin Statutes 
Chapter 125, the applicant may not have an arrest or conviction record.  This prohibition is subject 
to the requirements of various statutes prohibiting certain types of employment discrimination, 

http://www.appleton.org/


which will be discussed below, in relevant part.   
 
§125.04(5)(b) states that “No license or permit related to alcohol beverages may, subject to 
§111.321, 111.322 and 111.335, be issued under this chapter to any person who has habitually 
been a law offender or has been convicted of a felony unless the person has been duly 
pardoned.”   
 
In summary, §125.04(5) prohibits the issuance of alcohol related licenses under chapter 125 to 
anybody with an arrest or conviction record, anybody with an unpardoned felony conviction, or 
anybody “who has habitually been a law offender,” regardless of whether any arrests or 
convictions exist (see State ex rel. Smith v. City of Oak Creek, 139 Wis. 2d 788, 407 N.W.2d 901 
(1987)), unless failing to grant that license would constitute prohibited discrimination. 
 

§111.335 – Arrest or Conviction Record; Exceptions and Special Cases 
 
§111.335(3)(a)1 states that it is not employment discrimination because  of a conviction record to 
refuse to license an individual where that person has been convicted of “any felony, 
misdemeanor, or other offense the circumstances of which substantially related to the 
circumstances of the particular job or licensed activity.”  In evaluating the existence of a 
substantial relationship, it is the circumstances that provide the opportunity for criminal behavior, 
the reaction to responsibility, or the character traits of the applicant that are the proper 
considerations.  It is not relevant whether the applicant has the ability to perform the work to an 
employer’s standards.  (See Milwaukee Cnty. v. Lab. & Indus. Rev. Comm'n, 139 Wis. 2d 805, 
407 N.W.2d 908 (1987)). 
 
Each offense must be evaluated under the above criteria for determination of whether or not it is 
substantially related to the activity for which a license is sought.  Any arrest, conviction, or other 
offense which is substantially related to the licensed activity is to be considered in the licensing 
decision. 
 

Consideration of Rehabilitation 
 
§111.335(4)(c)1 requires that if a license is denied based upon §111.335(3)(a)1 as discussed 
above, the licensing agency typically has two further obligations.  It must state the reasons for 
denial in writing, including a statement of how the circumstances of the offense(s) relate to the 
licensed activity.  It typically must also allow the person to show evidence of rehabilitation.  
According to §111.335(4)(c)1.b, if the individual “shows competent evidence of sufficient 
rehabilitation and fitness to perform the licensed activity under par. (d), the licensing agency may 
not refuse to license the individual or bar or terminate the individual from licensing based on that 
conviction.” 
 

Competent Evidence of Sufficient Rehabilitation 
 

§111.335(4)(d)1 provides two forms of evidence which are statutorily required to be considered 
“competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation,” and therefore must be accepted by the 
licensing agency as such.  §111.335(4)(d)1.a. allows one to provide certified documentation of 
honorable discharge from the US armed forces following the otherwise disqualifying conviction.  
This documentation is no longer sufficient if there is a criminal conviction following the discharge 
date. 
 
§111.335(4)(d)1.b, allows the applicant to provide documentation of their release from custody 



and either completion of probation or release from custody and compliance with all terms and 
conditions of release, be it extended supervision, probation, or parole. 
 
Where neither of the above exists, §111.335(4)(d)2 provides additional documentary evidence 
that may be provided that the licensing agency is bound to consider, but that it is not required to 
accept conclusively as sufficient evidence of rehabilitation.  Evidence which the agency is required 
to consider includes:  

a. evidence of the seriousness of any offense of which he / she was convicted. 
b. evidence of all circumstances relative to the offense including mitigating circumstances or 

social conditions surrounding the offense. 
c. The age of the individual at the time the offense was committed. 
d. The length of time that has elapsed since the offense was committed. 
e. Letters of reference by persons who have been in contact with the individual since the 

applicant’s release from any local, state, or federal correctional institution. 
f. All other relevant evidence of rehabilitation and fitness presented. 

 
Based upon the above, where a denial of a licensed is based upon §111.335(3)(a)1, and there is 
no evidence presented that is statutorily defined as “competent evidence of sufficient 
rehabilitation” for a particular offense, it is up to the licensing agency to determine whether the 
other documentary evidence available constitutes “competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation 
and fitness to perform the licensed activity.”     
 

Applicability to the Application of Cindy Reed 
 
Investigation by the Appleton Police Department has yielded information about offenses which Lt. 
Goodin advises are substantially related to the activity for which the instant license has been 
sought.  By the nature of the offenses, this is a sound assessment.  The offense of Operating a 
Motor Vehicle While Intoxicated necessarily involves either the failure to recognize over-
consumption of alcohol (i.e. intoxication), or the decision to disregard the fact that one has over-
consumed alcohol.  Those licensed to serve alcohol commercially are called upon with each 
transaction to determine whether the person they are about to serve is intoxicated.  Wis. Stat. 
§125.07(2)(a).  Their judgement potentially impacts the safety of that customer, as well as 
anybody that customer may subsequently encounter before any effects of the alcohol recede. 
 
Lt. Goodin notes convictions for OWI in 2007, 2002, and 1995.  These would be either 
misdemeanor or non-criminal convictions for OWI offenses prior to the approval of Ms. Reed’s 
prior operator license application.  However, Lt. Goodin takes note of a recent conviction occurring 
since Ms. Reed’s prior application was approved. 
 
On January 30, 2024, Ms. Reed was convicted of OWI 4th offense, a felony, in Winnebago County 
Case 2023CF277.  According to Wisconsin Circuit Court Access records accessed on September 
12, 2024, Ms. Reed was sentenced to a combination of jail (with work release), monetary 
penalties, and a combination of judicial and administrative penalties against her driving privileges.   
 
Her sentence did not subject her to supervision through probation, extended supervision, or 
parole.  Therefore, she would be unable to provide any documentation of rehabilitation and fitness 
that the Committee and Council would be required to accept as “competent evidence of sufficient 
rehabilitation,” unless she has been honorably discharged from the United States armed forces 
since the date of the offense on March 23, 2023.   
 
However, she is still able to provide additional information and evidence to show competent 



evidence of sufficient rehabilitation such as that contained in the list above.  The Committee and 
Council are bound to consider that evidence.  Whether evidence presented is sufficient to show 
rehabilitation and fitness to perform the licensed activity is committed to the sound discretion of 
the Committee and Council.  Should the Committee and Council find the evidence sufficient to 
demonstrate rehabilitation and fitness, state law requires that the license must be granted 
because failure to do so would constitute unlawful discrimination.  Should the Committee and 
Council find the evidence to be insufficient do demonstrate rehabilitation and fitness, state law 
prohibits the license from being granted, as the applicant would not meet eligibility criteria.     
 

Conclusion 
 
Ms. Reed’s most recent conviction for OWI 4th offense is a disqualifying offense.  It is an 
unpardoned felony. It is also the latest in a series of convictions which qualify Ms. Reed as a 
Habitual Law Offender.  This is also a disqualifying fact.  All of the relevant offenses are 
substantially related to the licensed activity.  Therefore, denial based upon these factors is not 
unlawful discrimination.  The staff recommendation that the application to renew Ms. Reed’s 
operator’s license be denied is supported by the relevant law and available facts.   
 
Ms. Reed is afforded the opportunity to demonstrate to the Committee and Council that she has 
been rehabilitated.  Subject to one exception discussed above, the Committee and Council will 
be tasked with exercising its judgement and discretion in evaluating whether Ms. Reed has 
shown competent evidence of rehabilitation.  As the statutes require granting an operator’s 
license to eligible applicants, and prohibits granting a license to ineligible applicants, the 
decision of whether or not Ms. Reed’s license is to be renewed will rest upon the Committee 
and Council’s sound assessment of the evidence and documentation of rehabilitation Ms. Reed 
is able to provide, and the conclusions drawn therefrom.   

























1 
 

 

 

I. PURPOSE 
 
The City values the importance of community gatherings, large and small, as a key 
driver of quality of life in the Fox Cities.  The purpose of this policy is to outline a clear 
and equitable process for special event organizers while also capturing necessary 
information for City staff to make informed decisions on use of resources and 
considerations to issue permits for safe and successful events.   

 

II. POLICY 
 
Events, gatherings, and planned occurrences on City property or in City rights-of-way 
that surpass the normal and ordinary use of such property may be considered special 
events and subject to review and permitting.  Certain events, while held on private 
property, may still require extraordinary services from the City or pose safety risks to the 
public and would benefit from review by the Special Events Committee and require a 
Special Event permit. 

 

III. DISCUSSION 
 
It is recognized that special events of all size benefit the community.  At the same time 
the City has numerous considerations when reviewing a special event such as: safety to 

 
CITY OF APPLETON 
POLICY  
 

 
Title:   

SPECIAL EVENTS 

Department: Legal & Administrative Services Policy Source: Office of 
the City Clerk 

Audience: City employees, 
residents, visitors, event 
applicants/permit holders 

Issue Date:  September, 1996 Date Last Updated: 
February 2024 

Total Pages: 12 

Reviewed by Legal:  
November, 2002 
January, 2017 
January, 2024 
October, 2024 

Committee Approval 
Date: 
January 25, 2017 
February 14, 2024 

Council Approval Date: 

February 1, 2017 
February 21, 2024 



2 
 

the public, preservation of life and property and compliance with the Municipal Code, 
County Ordinances, State Statutes, federal law and relevant City policies.  These items 
are of paramount importance and will be heavily weighted in review of Special Event 
proposals in accordance with this policy.   
 
Event organizers should have a consistent and streamlined process to follow when 
considering, applying for, and executing their events.  Responsibility for the process and 
oversight of event permitting rests with the City of Appleton; responsibility for planning 
and execution of the special event is that of the event organizer(s). 
 
Events and programs will be evaluated on the details – not the content – of the event in 
question and City staff will exercise discretion in reviewing each event on a case-by-
case basis. 
 
Costs of providing community events must be proportionally borne by event organizers 
and the City’s taxpayers, though the City’s goal is not to achieve 100% cost recovery for 
events and programs.  
 
Impacts of events vary widely depending on expected attendance, location, and 
attributes of the event.  Events should meet community expectations for provision of 
public safety resources and level of emergency preparedness based on the scale, 
complexity, and risk environment presented by the event. 
 
The City must have sufficient notice prior to a special event so that the City may 
adequately evaluate the potential impact the event may have on resources of City 
Departments, City-owned properties and facilities, and ultimately on the public.  
Applications for special events must be submitted forty-five (45) days prior to the start of 
the event. 

 

IV. DEFINITIONS 
 
Anticipated attendance means an objective estimate made by an applicant of the 
maximum number of people that will attend at a given time.  This may also be construed 
as peak attendance at the event. 
 
Applicant means the person applying for the special event permit. 
 
Days means calendar days. 
 
Multiple day event means a special event that occurs on more than one day, where the 
days are consecutive or at a consistent interval (e.g., an event occurring on a 
consecutive Saturday and Sunday or an event occurring every other Tuesday), at the 



3 
 

same start and end time and at the same location.  One special event license will be 
issued for a multiple day event. 
 
Normal and ordinary use means the way City owned property should normally and 
ordinarily be used, as established by the department of that jurisdiction (e.g., a ball 
diamond complex’s normal and ordinary use is for baseball/softball games, a public 
street’s normal and ordinary use is for vehicular traffic, a sidewalk’s normal and ordinary 
use is for pedestrian use).  Whether an event is considered within the normal and 
ordinary use of the property is determined by the City department that maintains 
jurisdiction over the property. 
 
Special event or event means any planned occurrence in the public right-of-way or on 
public property including, but not limited to, parades, gatherings, festivals and athletic 
events which are not within the normal and ordinary use of the place or which, by the 
nature of the event, may have a greater impact on City services or resources than would 
have occurred had the event not taken place.  A special event may be a single day event 
or a multiple day event.  A special event does not include block parties as defined by the 
Department of Public Works Block Party Policy. 
 
Special Event Permit Application Form or application means the application 
available from the Office of the City Clerk that must be completed and filed in the Office 
of the City Clerk no later than forty-five (45) days prior to the event.  
 
Special Event Permit means the permit issued by the City Clerk on the 
recommendation of the City Special Events Committee. 
 
Special Events Committee or Committee means the committee comprised of City 
employees representing the following City departments: Health, Human Resources – 
Risk Management, Fire, Legal & Administrative Services, Parks & Recreation, Police, 
Public Works, and Valley Transit. 
 
 

V. PROCEDURES 
 
A. PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

 
1. APPLICATION.  To obtain a special event permit, the applicant must file a 

completed application with the Office of the City Clerk a minimum of forty-five 
(45) days prior to the event and pay the application fee. 
 

(a) LATE APPLICATIONS.  Late applications result in an automatic denial of 
the special event permit. 
 



4 
 

(b) ADDITIONAL RESERVATIONS/PERMITS/LICENSES.  Applications must be 
complete and all relevant information enclosed in the application 
including additional reservations, licenses, or permits are required. 
 

(c) MAP/ROUTE/DIAGRAM OF EVENT.  A detailed map or diagram indicating 
the specific location and must be submitted with the application.  The 
map should also indicate any proposed street closures and the 
proposed route and direction of route, including all turns and the 
number of traffic lanes to be used, if applicable.  Event routes must be 
submitted with the application regardless of historical precedent.  
Proposed routes may be altered after the permit has been issued only at 
the discretion of the Police Department and the Department of Public 
Works.  
 

2. STREET CLOSURE.  Street closures will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis, 
with an emphasis on minimizing the impact to traffic flow on collector and 
arterial roadways.   
 

(a) COUNTY HIGHWAYS.  Closure of county highways or their detour routes 
require approval of the county.   
 

(b) INTERSTATES OR STATE HIGHWAYS.  Closure of interstates or state 
highways or their detour routes require approval from the Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation.  These approvals may require a pre-
approved detour route capable of commercial motor vehicle traffic. 

 
(c) TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.  Applicants or their contractor must provide 

an acceptably prepared Traffic Control Plan (TCP) for review and 
approval six (6) weeks prior to the event for roadways or their detour 
routes defined as interstates, highways, or arterial roadways, or four (4) 
weeks prior to the event for other roadways.  Roadway designations are 
defined in the City of Appleton’s Temporary Traffic Control Manual.  The 
plan must comply with the Federal Highway Administration’s Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices, latest edition, and the City of Appleton’s 
Temporary Traffic Control Manual, latest edition.  Temporary traffic 
control devices/services must be provided by a contractor which has 
extensive experience in the industry and is approved in advance of the 
event.  It is the responsibility of the applicant or their contractor to 
ensure that the approved temporary traffic control devices are: 

 
1) Assembled and delivered to the appropriate locations by noon 

on the day prior to the event, (unless a different time is pre-
approved by City of Appleton staff). 

2) Properly configured in accordance with the approved TCP. 



5 
 

3) Removed from the roadway immediately following the end of the 
event. 

4) Removed from the city rights-of-way within forty-eight (48) hours 
of the end of the event. 

Road closures will use temporary traffic control devices, including 
barricades, temporary signs, and cones.  When deployed on the public right-
of-way, these constitute official traffic control devices.  They shall not be 
removed or modified without permission from the City of Appleton or their 
designee. 

3. INSURANCE.  Events are required to have adequate levels of insurance as 
determined by the City’s Risk Manager and based on the size and type of the 
event.  Pertinent applicants must provide a valid certificate of insurance 
covering all liability with their application and must list the City of Appleton as an 
additional insured. 
 

4. FOOD SERVICE.  Events offering food to attendees shall describe the food 
service being offered and provide a list of food vendors with the application.  
Copies of food vendor’s Health Licenses may also be required.  Any updates to 
the vendor lists shall be submitted to the Health Department two (2) weeks prior 
to the event.  Food vendors that are not pre-approved may not participate in the 
event. 
 

5. SAFETY/SECURITY.  Events must have a designated head of security and may be 
required to have additional security personnel at the rate of one (1) security 
person for every 300 persons present if alcohol is available for consumption, or 
for every 600 persons present if alcohol is not available for consumption.  The 
City of Appleton has the discretion to modify these ratios as they deem 
necessary, and the applicant will be notified of the modification as soon as 
reasonably possible.  
Security at a special event must meet the standards determined by the Appleton 
Police Department or must be provided by a contractor approved by the 
Appleton Police Department.  
 
(a) HEAD OF SECURITY.  The head of security must, at minimum, be (i) 18 years 

of age or older, (ii) clearly identifiable as event staff at all times during the 
event, (iii) reachable by phone at all times during the event by any City 
employee, (iv) able to call 911 during the event, (v) able to contact and 
instruct the security personnel, as applicable, during the event, and (vi) be 
trained as a crowd manager per the adopted Fire Code. 
 

(b) SECURITY PERSONNEL.  Security personnel must, at minimum, be: (i) 18 
years of age or older, (ii) clearly identifiable as event staff at all times during 
the event, (iii) able to call 911 during the event, (iv) reachable at all times by 



6 
 

the head of security during the event, (v) be able to act on instructions from 
the head of security, or any other authorized person, in case of an 
emergency, and (vi) be trained as a crowd manager per the adopted Fire 
Code. 
 

(c) ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS.  In the event the City of Appleton has a 
reasonable and justifiable reason to request the applicant have additional 
safety features at the event beyond what is provided for in the application on 
supplemental form SE-03, the Department(s) must let the applicant and the 
City Clerk know what additional safety features the event will need at the 
time the application is reviewed by the Department.  If the applicant refuses 
to provide, or cause to be provided by an approved contractor, the additional 
safety features recommended by the City of Appleton, the Department(s) 
may recommend denying the event/application per section VI. A. 2., and the 
applicant may appeal pursuant to section VI. A. 3. 
There are some circumstances in which the City of Appleton may deem it 
appropriate to provide additional equipment or services outside of the items 
noted on the application for a special event to uphold the safety of the public 
and preservation of life and property.  These determinations made solely by 
the discretion of the City of Appleton, will not incur costs or fees to be borne 
proportionally by the applicant.  
 

6. SET-UP, TOILET FACILITIES, AND CLEAN-UP.   
 
(a) SET-UP TIME.  Set-up for an event, including, but not limited to, dropping off 

supplies and erecting tents, shall not take place more than four (4) hours in 
advance of an event unless approval for earlier set-up has been granted in 
writing by the Department(s) with jurisdiction over the location of the event. 
 

(b) MARKINGS.  Any instructions or information about or pertaining to an event 
applied directly to City property, such as streets, sidewalks and curbs, must 
be no more than twelve (12) inches in height and two (2) feet in length.  Only 
white, temporary (lasting no longer than [30] days), water-based marking 
paint or landscape chalk is permitted to be used. 
 

(c) TOILETS.  It is the responsibility of the applicant to ensure the adequate 
number of toilets are available at the event. 
 

(d) WASTE RECEPTACLES.  It is the responsibility of the applicant to ensure the 
proper number of waste receptacles are present at the event.   
 

(e) CLEAN-UP.  It is the responsibility of the applicant to ensure the location of 
the event is left in the same condition it was prior to the event.  All clean-up 
efforts must be completed expeditiously and no later than four (4) hours 



7 
 

after the conclusion of the event unless approval for additional clean-up 
time has been granted in writing by the Department with jurisdiction over the 
location of the event.  
 

B. FACILITY RESERVATIONS 
 
1. Facility reservations related to special events are on a first-come, first-served 

basis and may be made no more than one (1) year in advance; subject to 
sections V. B. 2. below. 
 

2. Organizations/groups/individuals that have reserved a City park/facility for a 
special event have forty-five (45) days after the date of the special event to make 
reservations for the same location, day or weekend for the following year, 
subject to the Park/Facility Reservation policy, which requires a special event 
application to be on file with the Office of the City Clerk prior to the reservation 
being finalized.  After forty-five (45) days the City park/facility will be open for the 
public to reserve.  
 

C. PARADES 
 
1. Applicants for parades must complete the supplemental parade questionnaire 

(SE-08) and submit it with their special event application. 
 

2. Parade routes should seek to have minimal impact on traffic disruption in the 
proposed area.  All parade routes are subject to review, modification and 
approval by way of the Special Events Committee. 
 

3. The approved safety plan for the parade provided by the Appleton Police 
Department, must be adhered to.  Failure to comply may result in citations or 
denial of future applications. 
 

4. Throwing and distributing items from parade entries to spectators including, but 
not limited to, pamphlets, fliers, toys, stickers, food, or candy is prohibited. 
 

5. Parade units may not operate in a reckless or dangerous manner. 
 

D. CITY ELECTRICITY (DPW) 
 
1. Use of power outlets in City street light poles and tree planters (hereafter 

referred to as City Outlets) is not allowed unless specified as part of an approved 
Special Event Permit or otherwise approved by the City Traffic Engineer. 
 

2. The maximum current draw available per duplex outlet is sixteen (16) amps, or 
two thousand (2,000) watts in total, including both the upper and lower half of 



8 
 

the outlet.  Exceeding this limit will likely blow a fuse and the City Outlet in 
question will be without power for the remainder of the event. 
 

3. City Outlets will be checked before and after each event.  The costs associated 
with replacing blown fuses and/or making electrical repairs due to electrical 
overdraw will be the responsibility of the Special Event Permit holder. 
 

4. All City Outlets have ground fault circuit interrupt (GFCI) protection.  Any devices 
that will be plugged into a City Outlet should be checked prior to the event at a 
different location, to ensure that they do not trip a GFCI. 
 

5. Extension cords plugged into City Outlets must comply with all of the following: 
(a) Outdoor rated, 3-wire, 
(b) 12 gauge or heavier, 
(c) No longer than 25 feet. 

             Use of unacceptable extension cords may result in power being shut off. 

6. Nothing can be taped to City poles, as many types of tape leave residue that can 
damage the pole finish.  Costs associated with any tape residue removal will be 
the responsibility of the Special Event Permit holder.  
 

E. FEES 
 
1. APPLICATION FEE.  The application fee is due upon submittal of a special event 

application to the Office of the City Clerk.  See Appendix 1 Fee Schedule. 
 

2. POLICE INVESTIGATION FEE.  A  background check of all applicants will be 
conducted by the Police Department.  The fee for the background check is in 
addition to the application fee and must be paid at the time the application is 
submitted.  See Appendix 1 Fee Schedule. 
 

3. CITY EVENTS.  Events where the applicant is an official, employee or designated 
agent of the City acting on behalf of the City will not incur any fees.  These City-
sponsored events may have precedence over other events. 
 

4. PERMIT FEES.  Charges for park facilities, food sales permits, Street Occupancy 
Permits, tent permits, etc., are to be paid in addition to the fees discussed in this 
policy.  Permit fees are due at the time the related permit application is 
submitted. 
 

5. METER BAG FEES.  A Meter Bag application (form SE-09) shall be submitted at 
the time of the special event application submittal.  Charges for meter bags are 
to be paid per the DPW Downtown Parking and Meter Bag Policy in addition to 



9 
 

the fees discussed in this policy. 
 

6. CHARGEBACK FOR CITY SERVICES.  Special events incurring the use of City 
Services including but not limited to security, traffic control, and City equipment 
will be charged back for twenty-five (25) percent of actual costs incurred 
pursuant to Appendix 1 – Fee Schedule. 
Events with a historic or projected attendance of approximately ten thousand 
(10,000) people or more, will require a Special Event Service Agreement with the 
City.  The Special Event Service Agreement establishes event costs to be borne 
by the applicant.  Failure to reach and/or complete a Special Event Service 
Agreement will result in the applicant being charged for twenty-five (25) percent 
of actual costs incurred pursuant to Appendix 1 – Fee Schedule. 
 

(a) Event organizers may request an estimate of fees prior to the event. 
 

(b) Invoices for services rendered will be sent within forty-five (45) days after 
the event has concluded. 
 

(c) Applicants for events in which the total anticipated services rendered 
exceeds five-thousand dollars ($5,000) may be required to pay a portion 
of the anticipated fees for services rendered two (2) weeks in advance of 
the event. 
 

(d) Failure to pay invoices by the time specified may result in the denial of 
future permit applications. 
 

7. NON-REFUNDABLE.  All fees are non-refundable.  Advance payments for 
services may be refunded pursuant to section V.F.2. below. 
 

F. EVENT CANCELLATION.   
 
1. The Mayor or designee may cancel an event without prior notice for any 

condition affecting public health, safety, or welfare of the City, or any condition 
that would affect facilities, grounds, or other natural resources at risk of damage 
or destruction if the event were permitted to take place. 
 

2. The applicant/organizer of the event should provide ample notice of intent to 
cancel any planned special event to the Office of the City Clerk.  Event 
cancellation by the organizer does not guarantee availability of the venue, or 
resources to reschedule the event.  Events that pre-paid for anticipated services 
rendered will receive a refund of the pre-paid amount for an event cancellation if 
the notice of cancellation is received by the City Clerk forty-eight (48) hours prior 
to the commencement of the event.  
 



10 
 

G. COMPLIANCE.  The applicant is responsible for ensuring that the event complies 
with this policy and all applicable laws and regulations including, but not limited to, 
statutes, ordinances, traffic rules, park and trail rules, health laws, fire codes, City 
facility reservation policies and procedures, and alcohol licensing regulations.  
Failure to comply resulting in the City providing additional services will result in the 
applicant being billed for the City provided services at the rate(s) outlined in 
Appendix 1 Fee Schedule. 
 

H. PRECEDENT.  Nothing in this policy shall take precedence over any applicable 
statutes or ordinances. 
 
 

VI. APPLICATION REVIEW 
 
A. DEPARTMENT REVIEW.  Applications are reviewed by employees from the following 

City departments: Health, Human Resources (Risk Management), Fire, Legal & 
Administrative Services (Office of the City Clerk), Parks & Recreation, Police, Public 
Works, and Valley Transit.  Each department will recommend approval or denial of 
the application by providing the Office of the City Clerk with the information behind 
their recommendation.  The City Clerk will issue the license upon receiving a 
recommendation for approval of the application from all reviewing departments. 
 
1. RELEVENT EVALUATION.  Each department must recommend approving or 

denying an application based on the information relevant to that department.  A 
department’s decision to recommend approving or denying an application may 
not be based in any way on the content of any message associated with the 
event.  A department’s decision to recommend approving or denying an 
application may be based on, but is not limited to, the following: 
 

(a) Use of departmental resources, 
(b) Costs to the department, 
(c) Any perceived public health or safety problem, 
(d) If the applicant or reoccurring event has a history of not 

complying with this policy and/or other applicable rules or 
regulations, which has or may have an impact on the 
department, and 

(e) Use of City property including risk and impact to resources 
and the environment that is relevant to the department, and 

(f) Overlapping events or conflicting events. 
 

2. DENIAL RECOMMENDATION.  If a recommendation for denial is made by a 
department, an explanation must be provided to the City Clerk which will then 
be provided to the applicant. 
 



11 
 

3. APPEALS PROCESS.  If an application is denied for any reason, including an 
inability to pay required fees due to indigency, the applicant may request the 
application be submitted to the Common Council by way of the Safety and 
Licensing Committee for review and a final determination of whether to grant 
the permit.   

 
(a) LATE APPLICATIONS: The City Clerk shall follow the notification 

requirements of Sec. 9-26 of the Municipal Code for application denials; 
however, late applications for special events present unique constraints 
for applications to appeal a denial due to the potential for the lack of an 
opportunity for an appeal to be decided by the Common Council prior to 
the scheduled event.  Late applications are those filed with the Office of 
the City Clerk within forty-five (45) days of the event.  
 

(b) In the event of a late application, the City Clerk shall, without undue 
delay, notify the applicant of the automatic denial due to the untimely 
application, the City Clerk shall, without undue delay, notify City staff to 
conduct their Departmental reviews of the application in order for the 
Safety & Licensing Committee and Common Council to have all relevant 
information to consider when deciding to grant or deny the permit.  City 
staff shall make a reasonable effort to complete their Departmental 
review of the event prior to the appeal being heard by the Safety & 
Licensing Committee and, if applicable, continue their review to update 
the Common Council at the subsequent meeting. 
 

(c) Notwithstanding the aforementioned concerns related to late 
applications, an applicant waives their right to appeal a denial decision 
when there is not time to provide sufficient notice to the public for the 
appeal to be included in the agenda for the next regularly scheduled 
Safety & Licensing Committee meeting if the subsequent Common 
Council meeting is after the event date.  

 
4. WAIVER.  Some or all of the license requirements may be waived in cases where 

the United States Secret Service notifies the City of a proposed event in which it 
will be assisting with security details.  It will be at the discretion of the Special 
Events Committee which requirements will be waived.   

 
5. TIMING OF REVIEW.  Applications deemed complete by all relevant City 

Departments will be reviewed in a timely manner.  Absent exceptional 
circumstances, application review and permit issuance will be completed a 
minimum of fourteen (14) days prior to the commencement of the event. 

 
B. SPECIAL EVENTS STAFF COMMITTEE.  The Special Events Committee is comprised 

of City staff from the following City departments: Health, Human Resources (Risk 



12 
 

Management), Fire, Legal & Administrative Services (Office of the City Clerk), Parks 
& Recreation, Police, Public Works, and Valley Transit. 
 
1. PURPOSE.  The purpose of the Special Events Committee is for Committee 

members to plan, coordinate, and discuss the City resources that will be used 
for an upcoming special event, to discuss interdepartmentally any concerns or 
problems with a special event, and to generally provide the other City 
departments with information that may be relevant to approving and/or denying 
special event applications. 
 

2. MEETINGS.  The Committee meets once a month as determined by the City 
Clerk. 
 

3. ATTENDANCE.  City departments who recommend approving or denying special 
event applications should ensure at least one member of their department 
attends each Committee meeting. 
 

4. SPECIAL EVENT APPLICANTS.  Applicants may request to attend a Special Event 
Committee meeting to address questions or concerns with their proposed 
event.  Requests must be made to the Office of the City Clerk and will be 
accommodated to the extent possible.  



1 
 

                                     Appendix 1 

            SPECIAL EVENT FEE SCHEDULE  

 

 

 Service 
 

2025 Fees 
SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION FEES 
  Special Event Application Fee $75.00 
  Police Investigation Fee (applicant) $7.00 
GENERAL SERVICES/LICENSES/PERMITS 
Temporary Class "B" or "Class B" License $10.00 
Bonfire Permit $15.00 
Pyrotechnics Permit $1,000.00 
Flame Effect Display   $400.00 
Inspection Fee   $25.00 
Tent Permit $15.00/Tent 
PERSONEL FEES  *staffing rates are per hour of service* 
Police Services                                                      
  Sworn (Straight Time) $56.45 
  Sworn (Overtime) $73.06 
  Sworn (Double Time) $97.42 
  Civilian (Straight Time) $43.07 
  Civilian (Overtime) $53.63 
  Civilian (Double Time) $71.51 
  CSO (Straight Time) $24.21 
  CSO (Overtime) $30.08 
  CSO (Double Time) $40.11 
Fire Services                                                    
  Fire Inspection (per hour) $51.25 
  Engine / Fire Crew $320.32 
  Fire Personnel (Straight Time) $47.97 
  Fire Personnel (1 1/2 Time) $71.96 
  Fire Personnel (Dbl Time) $95.94 
  Fire Battalion Chief (Straight Time) $60.76 
  Public Education Specialist $32.90 
Parks Services 
  Parks Personnel  $43.51 
Dept. of Public Works Services 
  Electrician (Straight Time) $54.59 
  Electrician (1 1/2 Time) $81.74 
  Electrician (Dbl Time) $108.98 
  Street/Sign Personnel (Straight Time) $46.14 



2 
 

  Street/Sign Personnel (1 1/2 Time) $69.21 
  Street/Sign Personnel (Dbl Time) $92.28 
EQUIPMENT FEES/RENTALS - FEMA Rates  
Bagged Parking Meters - charged 
per meter per day  

  $9.00  

No Parking Signs (per day) 
  Less than 20 signs $15.00 
  20-49 signs $50.00 
  50-99 signs $112.00 
  100 or more signs $225.00 
Hard Barricades (per day) 
  Dump Truck $77.76 /hour 
  Garbage Truck $90.30 /hour 
All Terrain Vehicle (ATV)   $23.74 /hour 
Aerial Lift, Truck Mntd  (Telescopic Boom 61ft) $23.90 /hour 
Ambulance (GVW 8600 Pounds)   $39.28 /hour 
Back-Pack Blower   $1.90 /hour 
Bus to 150 (FEMA rate to 100)   $31.99 /hour 
Bus to 210 (FEMA rate to 185)   $41.46 /hour 
Bus to 300 (FEMA rate to 230)   $49.13 /hour 
Flat bed utility trailer 6 ton   $2.87 /hour 
Street Sweeper   $127.96/hour 
Garbage Truck (rear load)   $90.30/hour 
Truck, Pickup 1/2 ton Pickup 
Truck 

  $16.52/hour 

Truck, Pickup 3/4 ton Pickup 
Truck 

  $16.52/hour 

Truck, Pickup 1-ton Pickup Truck    $29.46/hour 
Truck, Pickup 1 1/2 ton Pickup 
Truck 4X4-Axle 

  $29.46/hour 

Truck, Fire 1500 GPM   $220.55/hour 
Van, Custom Special Service 
Canteen Truck 

  $22.74/hour 

Vehicle, Small   $7.94/hour 
Fuse     
GFI     
FACILITIES RENTALS/FEES 
Parks and Recreation 
 Special Event Fee 

  $50.00 

      
Park Pavilion Rentals - Resident 
  Appleton Memorial Park - Pavilion $60.00 
  Appleton Memorial Park - Amphitheater $45.00 
  City Park $50.00 
  Erb Park $80.00 
  Pierce Park $125.00 



3 
 

  Telulah Park $100.00 
Park Pavilion Rentals - Non-Resident 
  Appleton Memorial Park - Pavilion $120.00 
  Appleton Memorial Park - Amphitheater $90.00 
  City Park $100.00 
  Erb Park $160.00 
  Pierce Park $250.00 
  Telulah Park $200.00 
Jones Park Fee Schedule - (To rent Jones Park Lot or Stage, organizer must also rent Jones Park Pavilion) 
  Local Non-Profit Organization $125.00/day 
  National Non-Profit Organization $175.00/day 
  For-Profit Organization $325.00/day 
  Private Event $525.00/day 
Jones Park Lot/Stage   
  Local Non-Profit Organization $125.00/day 
  National Non-Profit Organization $175.00/day 
  For-Profit Organization $325.00/day 
  Private Event $525.00/day 
Houdini Plaza Fee Schedule 
  Local Non-Profit Organization $25.00/day 
  National Non-Profit Organization $100.00/day 
  For-Profit Organization $300.00/day 
  Private Event $500.00/day 

 



 

 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

100 N Appleton Street 
Appleton, WI 54911  

p: 920.832.6443 
f: 920.832.5823 

www.appleton.org 

 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 
New Special Events Policy 
 
Date:  October 4, 2024 
 
To: Safety & Licensing Committee, Ald. Croatt – Chair;  

Common Council 
 
From:  Kami Lynch, City Clerk 
 
Encl: New Special Events Policy, Appendix 1 – Fee Schedule, Existing Special Events Policy, 

2023 Event Costs 
 
 
The proposed Special Events Policy was created due to the increasing volume of special events, growing 
complexities with public gatherings, and rising labor and material costs.  The proposed policy seeks to accomplish  
ensure the well-being of all participants of special events and our City resources .  It is intended that the proposed 
policy would be effective January 1, 2025 due to budgetary impacts associated with the policy revisions.     
The proposed policy is a result of research on comparable communities and their procedures, impacts on City 
Department resources, costs to taxpayers, safety and security at events, and impacts of events to the environment 
and City property. 
There are vast changes in the organization, formatting and elements of the policy.  Therefore, there is no red-lined 
version of the policy, but the existing policy is included for reference.  Information that has been added to the 
proposed policy is italicized, while information in plain text is copied from the existing policy.  Some of the significant 
changes in the new policy are addressed below. 
 

Anticipated Attendance and Application Deadlines 
The new policy removes the correlation of anticipated attendance with timing of application filing and 
related fees. 
It is often difficult for applicants to accurately discern anticipated attendance as numerous factors arise on a 
specific event date and time.  Events are no longer categorized by size and now proposed is a uniform 
application deadline for all events – a minimum of forty-five (45) days prior to the event date.   Forty-five 
(45) days prior to the event allows adequate time for departmental review and coordination of services 
required for the event. 

 
Fees 
Currently, special event fees are derived from event categorization based upon anticipated attendance, 
whether the event requests street closure, and timing of filing the application.  This fee structure fell short of 
accurately accounting for actual City services rendered in preparation for, during, and after an event.  The 
City recognizes the benefits  

http://www.appleton.org/


 
special events bring to our community and this policy seeks to bring an appropriate balance to the shared 
costs of holding events.  All comparable/neighboring communities charge special event holders for all 
actual costs (100%) of their personnel working in conjunction with special events. The new policy seeks to 
recoup twenty-five percent (25%) of actual services rendered utilizing the enclosed Fee Schedule 
(Appendix 1).  The City distinguishes the unique provisions involved in planning for large-scale events.  For 
events having historical or projected attendance of approximately 10,000 people or more, a Special Event 
Service Agreement between the applicant and the City will establish the costs to be borne by the applicant 
on a case-by-case basis. If a service agreement cannot be reached, then the Fee Schedule rates will apply.  
The actual costs of City services for various types of events occurring in 2023 is enclosed for reference.   

 
Safety and Security 
Revisions to this section include the requirement for a special event applicant to complete a supplemental 
Safety & Emergency Response Plan with their application.  This plan assists applicants with necessary 
event preparations and plans for various incidents or emergencies.  The new policy also provides that 
applicants refusing to provide recommended safety features by the City may have their application denied.  
There is also a provision stating that certain circumstances in which the City deems it appropriate to 
provide additional services beyond what is in the application, will not result in the applicant being charged 
for those added services. 

 
Use of City Electricity   
The existing policy does not address use of City Electricity through power outlets in City street poles or 
planters.  These outlets are frequently utilized during special events occurring in the downtown area and it 
is crucial that applicants understand the parameters and safety provisions surrounding use of these outlets.  

 
   
Modifications to the Special Event Application and supplemental information for applicants is an on-going process 
and will continually be evaluated and updated to best suit the needs of applicants and to provide that the City 
receives necessary information to decipher Special Event impacts for related planning and permitting.  
 
I encourage you to reach out with questions regarding the new Special Events Policy as they arise.  This will 
expedite the retrieval of the requested information so that it may be shared without delay.   
 
 



DEPARTMENT

Police Department
Appleton 
Jaycees 

Fireworks

Flag Day 
Parade

Children's 
Parade

Holiday 
Parade

Memorial 
Day Parade

Community 
Event - Small

 Car Show - 
Large

Cultural 
Exhibition 

Event

Large 
Entertainment 

Event

Large 
Festival

Car Show - 
Significant

Large 
Run/Walk

Small Fun 
Run

Cultural 
Event -
Large

Significant 
Run

Large Run

Application Fee $1,707.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $82.00 $1,000.00 $1,875.00 $2,632.00 $1,507.00 $1,500.00 $757.00 $57.00 $882.00 $707.00 $757.00
Size of Event Large Large Large Significant Large Small Large Large Significant Significant Significant Large Small Large Large Large
Street Closure (Y/N) Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes
# of Employees 41 54 11 69 19 8 8 9 31 84 60 20 4 8 27 16
Total Staff Hours 155 204 45 245.8 105.75 57.6 37.5 51 255.5 508.75 464.5 130.6 7.25 37 211.5 97.5
Cost APD (Personnel) $10,380.81 $13,920.00 $1,533.00 $14,318.00 $6,658.94 $4,929.55 $1,998.00 $2,058.00 $17,749.00 $35,584.87 $31,916.56 $5,934.00 $445.39 $3,276.26 $11,938.86 $5,620.00

Fire Department
Appleton 

Jayces 
Fireworks

Flag Day 
Parade

Children's 
Parade

Holiday 
Parade

Memorial 
Day Parade

Community 
Event - Small

 Car Show - 
Large

Cultural 
Exhibition 

Event

Large 
Entertainment 

Event

Large 
Festival

Car Show - 
Significant

Large 
Run/Walk

Small Fun 
Run

Cultural 
Event -
Large

Significant 
Run

Large Run

# of Employees 4 - - - - - - 2 2 10 2 - - - 2 -
Total Staff Hours 16 - - - - - - 8 10 25 5 - - - 8 -
Fire Inspection $820.00 - - - - - - - $1,025.00 $812.00 $512.50 - - - - -
Fire Personnel (1.5 time) $1,151.36 - - - - - - $2,302.72 - $4,317.60 - - - - $1,151.36 -
Fire B/C Cost - - - - - - - - - $1,215.20 - - - - - -
Total Cost Fire $1,971.36 - - - - - - $2,302.72 $1,025.00 $6,042.30 $512.50 - - - $1,151.36 -

Parks and Rec - Facilities
Appleton 

Jayces 
Fireworks

Flag Day 
Parade

Children's 
Parade

Holiday 
Parade

Memorial 
Day Parade

Community 
Event - Small

 Car Show - 
Large

Cultural 
Exhibition 

Event

Large 
Entertainment 

Event

Large 
Festival

Car Show - 
Significant

Large 
Run/Walk

Small Fun 
Run

Cultural 
Event -
Large

Significant 
Run

Large Run

# of Employees - - - - - - 1 - - - - - 1 -
Total Hours - - - - - - 1.25 2 - - - - 1.5 - 1.75
Total Cost - - - - - - $54.39 $87.02 - - - - $65.27 - $76.14

Parks and Rec - Grounds
Appleton 

Jayces 
Fireworks

Flag Day 
Parade

Children's 
Parade

Holiday 
Parade

Memorial 
Day Parade

Community 
Event - Small

 Car Show - 
Large

Cultural 
Exhibition 

Event

Large 
Entertainment 

Event

Large 
Festival

Car Show - 
Significant

Large 
Run/Walk

Small Fun 
Run

Cultural 
Event -
Large

Significant 
Run

Large Run

Total Cost  P&R $60.00 - - - - - - $117.00 $29.00 - - - - -

Department of Public 
Works

Appleton 
Jayces 

Fireworks

Flag Day 
Parade

Children's 
Parade

Holiday 
Parade

Memorial 
Day Parade

Community 
Event - Small

 Car Show - 
Large

Cultural 
Exhibition 

Event

Large 
Entertainment 

Event

Large 
Festival

Car Show - 
Significant

Large 
Run/Walk

Small Fun 
Run

Cultural 
Event -
Large

Significant 
Run

Large Run

# of Employees 3 18 - 18 13 - 3 3 5 20 - 2 - - 2 -
Total Labor Hours 7.5 134.25 - 135.5 116.75 - 11.25 10 44 157.25 - 2.5 - - 4 -
Total Labor Cost $262.01 $4,667.50 - $5,255.13 $7,288.52 - $373.24 $371.18 $2,570.43 $7,996.80 - $220.13 - - $349.70 -
Total Equipment Hours 4.5 59.75 - - 21.25 - 6.75 6.5 30.75 83 - - - - - -
Total Equipment Cost $72.18 $2,955.09 - $5,698.48 $631.07 - $108.27 $104.26 $2,536.80 $4,308.04 - $56.14 - - $56.14 -
Total cost for DPW $334.19 $7,622.59 - $10,953.61 $7,919.59 - $481.51 $475.44 $5,107.23 $12,304.84 - $276.27 - - $405.84 -

Total Costs $12,746.36 $21,542.59 $1,533.00 $25,271.61 $14,578.53 $4,929.55 $2,579.51 $5,040.18 $23,910.23 $53,932.01 $32,429.06 $6,210.27 $445.39 $3,341.53 $13,496.06 $5,696.14
-

2023 Event Cost Tracking - City Sponsored Events and Selected Other Events 
City-Sponsored Events Special Event Type



Return Completed application and total fee to the Office of the City Clerk, 100 N. Appleton St, Appleton, WI 54911. 

 

 
Please Note: Incomplete applications will not be accepted and will be returned to applicant. Applications are forwarded for review 
once payment is received. Applying does not guarantee the application will be approved – please speak to the City Clerk for more 
information.  The application fee will be based on the date the City Clerk’s Office receives the completed application.  For more 
information, please refer to the Special Event Policy or Manual. 

PLEASE PRINT CLEARLY! 

 
 

 

SECTION 1 – EVENT ORGANIZER  -  Information about the person, entity or organization holding the special event. 

Organization’s Name: 

Organization’s Address: 

Organization’s Phone Number: Organization’s Email/Website: 

SECTION 2 – APPLICANT INFORMATION - Information for person to contact before, during and after the event, if necessary. 

Name : Date of Birth:  

Address: 

Phone Number: Email Address: 

SECTION 3 – EVENT INFORMATION –Application must be filed at least 11 days prior to event. Applications received 10 days 
prior to event are NOT accepted, please plan accordingly. 

Name of Event: 

Event Location: 

Event Date (list each date if it’s a multi-day event):  

Event Set Up Time:                                 Event Start Time: Event End Time: 

Head of Security’s Name: Head of Security Phone Number: 

Total Anticipated Attendance (Participants/Attendees): 

Admission Requirements: 

Event information (whether the event has occurred before, purpose, activity, who can participate, etc.): 

___________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

FEES ARE NON-REFUNDABLE        

    
 

 Special Event License  

(CLLCMS) - see attached fee chart       

 

 

 

Date Recv’d _____/_____/_______ 

  Total  $______________________   

     

Receipt #:____________________ 

 

CASH OR CHECK ONLY! 
Special Event Permit Application Form 

Additional Documentation 
 

 Safety and Emergency Plan 
 

 Certificate of Insurance 
 

 Route/Map 
 

 Supplemental Parade 
Questionnaire 



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 

 
 

SECTION 4 – APPLICANT CHECKLIST - The applicant is responsible for contacting all necessary City departments and 
for obtaining all necessary reservations, permits, licenses and variances. Answer all questions regardless of size of 
event. Incomplete applications will not be processed. 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS – (920) 832-5580 
 Yes No Action to be taken by applicant: 

1.  Are you requesting street closure? 

  Name of barricade company _____________________________ 

  If yes, your barricading contract provider will be required to submit 
a Traffic Control Plan to the Department of Public Works. 

2.  Did you include a detailed map/diagram of the event location and 
route (if applicable) with this application? 

  Be sure the event map/diagram is detailed, including showing all 
turns and the number of traffic lanes to be used. 

3. Are you requesting parking meters to be bagged?   If yes, a list of meters must be provided to the Department of 
Public Works. 

4. Are you requesting use of the sidewalk or right of way?   If yes, contact the Department of Public Works for a Street 
Occupancy Permit. 

5. Are you requesting use of City Electricity (on City street 
poles/planters)? 

  If, yes, please provide diagram specifying requested locations of 
outlets. 

FIRE DEPARTMENT – (920) 832-5810 

 Yes No Action to be taken by applicant: 

1. Will the event be held indoors?   If yes, contact the Fire Department for more information. 

2.  Will a tent or any other temporary structure be erected?   If yes, contact the Fire Department for information about 
submitting a structure plan. 

3.  Will there be a tent larger than 200 square feet?   If yes, contact the Fire Department for a permit. 

4.  Will fireworks/pyrotechnic be used during the event? 
       

  If yes, contact the Fire Department for a permit. 

HEALTH DEPARTMENT– (920) 832- 6429 

 Yes No Action to be taken by applicant: 

1. Will food be prepared and/or served at the event?   If  yes, contact the Health Department for permitting requirements 
and for safe food handling tips. 

2.  Will there be a band or amplified music/noise?   If yes, contact the Health Department for a variance and more 
information. 

3. Will there be portable restrooms?   If yes, review guidelines on portable restrooms available in the 
Special Event Policy and Manual. 

PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMENT – (920) 832-5905 

 Yes No Action to be taken by applicant: 

1.  If the event will be in a park have you reserved the park?   If no, contact Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management to make 
a reservation.  

2.  Will there be rides and/or inflatables at the event?   If yes, contact Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management for 
more information. 

POLICE DEPARTMENT  –  (920) 832-5500 

 Yes No Action to be taken by applicant: 

1.  Do you have a plan for medical emergencies that may occur  
      during your event? 

  If no, contact the Police Department for assistance. 

2.  Is security needed for the event?   If yes, contact the Police Department for assistance defining your 
safety/security plan. 

3.  Are you requesting any special parking restrictions?   If yes, contact the Appleton Police Department for more 
information.  

RISK MANAGEMENT – (920) 832-6300 

 Yes No Action to be taken by applicant: 

1.  Do you have the proper insurance for your event and have you  
provided your certificate of insurance to the City? 

  If no, contact the City’s Risk Manager.  

CITY CLERK’S OFFICE – (920) 832-6443 

 Yes No Action to be taken by applicant: 

1. Will alcoholic beverages be served/sold at the event?   If yes, contact the City Clerk’s Office to obtain a Temporary Class 
“B” license.  

2. Does you event plan include a parade?   If yes, contact the City Clerk’s office to fill out the required Parade 
Supplemental Questionnaire. 

3. Does your event plan include shuttle services/rides?   If yes, contact the City Clerk’s office for information on the licensing 
of taxicab/limousine/shuttle companies. 

4.  Do you owe money for past events?   If yes, contact the City Clerk – your application may not be 
accepted. 



 
 

 
 
 

SECTION 5 – ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENT 

 
For events that involve more than 250 people, if a street closure is requested or if structures are brought onto public premises; the 
event holder agrees to list the City of Appleton, and its officers, council members, agents, employees, and authorized volunteers as 
an additional insured on the event holder's general liability insurance policy.  Certificates of insurance displaying this additional 
insured status must list the following as the certificate holder: City of Appleton, Attention: Risk Manager, 100 North Appleton Street, 
Appleton, WI 54911. 

 
   Signature of Applicant: ________________________________________________     Date: _____________________________ 

 

SECTION 6 – CERTIFICATION 

 
By signing below, I certify that I am at least 18 years of age, that I have read and understand the Special Event Policy, and that I 
agree to the terms and conditions contained in the Special Event Policy.  My signature further confirms (i) that I understand the 
filing of this application does not ensure the issuance of a Special Event License, (ii) that the Special Event License Fee is non-
refundable pursuant to the terms of the Special Event Policy, (iii) I will be responsible for ensuring the event and event participants 
comply with all applicable city ordinances, traffic rules, park rules, state health laws, fire codes and liquor licensing regulations and 
any other applicable laws, rules and regulations including the Special Event Policy, (iv) that fees for park facilities, food sales permits, 
tent and fireworks permits, etc., are in addition to the Special Event License Fee, (v) that I am authorized to apply for this Special 
Event Licensed on behalf of the organization holding the event (if applicable), and (vi) that the information contained in this 
Application is true to the best of my knowledge. I understand that intentionally providing false or misleading information in this 
Application may lead to civil or criminal penalties.  

 
   Signature of Applicant: ________________________________________________     Date: _____________________________ 

 
 Print Name: _________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 Print Name: _________________________________________________________ 

SECTION 7 – INDEMNIFICATION 

 
 

Please read carefully before signing!  This section affects your legal rights. 
 

IF THERE IS ANYTHING IN THIS SECTION THAT YOU DO NOT UNDERSTAND OR IF YOU OBJECT TO ANY 
PROVISION CONTAINED IN THIS SECTION, YOU SHOULD NOT SIGN THIS SECTION AS IT IS DRAFTED, BUT 
RATHER SEEK ADVICE FROM YOUR LEGAL COUNSEL. REQUESTS FOR MODIFICATIONS MAY BE DIRECTED 
TO THE CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE AT 920-832-6423 WEEKDAYS BETWEEN 8:00 AM AND 4:00 PM. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION:  BY SIGNING BELOW I ACKNOWLEDGE THAT FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, I, THE APPLICANT, ON 
BEHALF OF MYSELF AND THE ORGANIZATION, IF APPLICABLE, AGREE TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND HOLD HARMLESS THE CITY OF 
APPLETON AND ITS OFFICERS, OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, LOSS, DAMAGE, 
EXPENSES AND COSTS, INCLUDING ATTORNEY FEES, ARISING OUT OF THE ACTIVITIES PERFORMED AS DESCRIBED HEREIN, CAUSED 
IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY ANY NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION OF THE APPLICANT/ORGANIZATION, ANYONE DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY 
EMPLOYED BY ANY OF THEM OR ANYONE WHOSE ACTS ANY OF THEM MAY BE LIABLE, EXCEPT WHERE CAUSED BY THE SOLE 
NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OF THE CITY. 
 
 
   Signature of Applicant: ________________________________________________     Date: _____________________________ 

 
 Print Name: _________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

1 LATE FEE will be charged for late applications for Large and Significant Events that have been held for the last two consecutive years where nothing has changed, subject to the 
late fee and the application approval process.  If the event has not been held the last two consecutive years or if there is a change to the event from the previous year the application 
will not be accepted. 
 
2 SMALL EVENT = Anticipated attendance of less than 1,000 people. 
 
3 LARGE EVENT = Anticipated attendance of between 1,000 and 4,999 people. 
 
4 SIGNIFICANT EVENT = Anticipated attendance of 5,000 people and over. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SINGLE DAY EVENT LICENSE FEE -- **Includes $7 for a Police investigation fee** 

 
 

NUMBER OF 
DAYS BEFORE 

THE EVENT 

 
SMALL EVENTS2  
Without Street 

Closure 

 
SMALL EVENTS2 

With 
Street Closure 

 
LARGE EVENTS3  
Without Street 

Closure 

 
LARGE EVENTS3 

With Street 
Closure 

 

 
SIGNIFICANT 

EVENTS4 
Without Street 

Closure 

 
SIGNIFICANT 

EVENTS4 
With Street Closure 

90+ days  $62 $117 $557 $777 $1,107 $1,657 

60-89 days $73 $172 $667 $832 $1,327 $1,877 

45-59 days $89 $227 $887 $1,107 $1,822 $2,757 

30-44 days $117 $337 $997 $1,107 + Late 
Fee1 

$1,822 + Late Fee1  $2,757 + Late Fee1 
 

11-29 days $227 $447 Application Not 
Accepted 

Application Not 
Accepted 

Application Not 
Accepted 

Application Not 
Accepted 

 10 days Application 
Not Accepted 

Application Not 
Accepted 

Application Not 
Accepted 

Application Not 
Accepted 

Application Not 
Accepted 

Application Not 
Accepted 

Late Fee1 N/A N/A N/A $800 $800 $1,500 



 
 

 

 

 

1 MULTIPLE DAY EVENT means a special event that occurs on more than one day, where the days are consecutive or at a consistent interval (e.g., an event occurring on a consecutive  
Saturday and Sunday or an event occurring every other Tuesday), at the same start and end time and at the same location.  One special event license will be issued for a multiple day 
event.   
 
2 LATE FEE will be charged for late applications for Large and Significant Events that have been held for the last two consecutive years where nothing has changed, 
subject to the late fee and the application approval process.  If the event has not been held the last two consecutive years or if there is a change to the event from the 
previous year the application will not be accepted. 
 
3 SMALL EVENT = Anticipated attendance of less than 1,000 people. 
 
4 LARGE EVENT = Anticipated attendance of between 1,000 and 4,999 people. 
 
5 SIGNIFICANT EVENT = Anticipated attendance of 5,000 people and over. 

 

 

 
MULTIPLE DAY1 EVENT LICENSE FEE-- **Includes $7 for a Police investigation fee** 

 
 

NUMBER OF 
DAYS BEFORE 

THE EVENT 

 
SMALL EVENT3 
Without Street 

Closure 

 
SMALL EVENT3 

With 
Street Closure 

 
LARGE EVENT4 
Without Street 

Closure 

 
LARGE EVENT4  

With  Street Closure 

 
SIGNIFICANT EVENT5 

Without Street 
Closure 

 
SIGNIFICANT EVENT5 
With Street Closure 

90 days or more $62 $117 $557 $777 first day + $192 
each additional day = 

total fee 

$1,107 $1,657 first day + $412 
each additional day = 

total fee 

60-89 days $73 
 

$172 $667 $832 first day + $207 
each additional day = 

total fee 

$1,327 $1,877 first day + $467 
each additional day = 

total fee 

45-59 days $89 $227 $887 $1,107 first day + 
$275 each additional 

day = total fee 

$1,822 $2,757 first day + $825 
each additional day = 

total fee 

30-44 days $117 $337 $997 $1,107 first day fee + 
$275 each additional 
day + Late Fee2 = total  

$1,822 + Late Fee2 
= total  

$2,757 first day + $825 
each additional day + 

Late Fee2 = total  

10-29 days $227 $447 Application 
Not Accepted 

Application Not 
Accepted 

Application Not 
Accepted 

Application Not 
Accepted 

< 10 days Application Not 
Accepted 

Application Not 
Accepted 

Application 
Not Accepted 

Application not 
Accepted 

Application Not 
Accepted 

Application Not 
Accepted 

 
Late Fee2 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
$800 

 
$800 

 
$1,500 



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil





lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil





lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_SL Minutes 09-25-24
	0002_1_Cindy Reed Operator License Application
	0002_2_Cindy Reed Clerk Letter
	0002_3_Cindy Reed PD Letter
	0002_4_Cindy Reed Denial Appeal Memo
	0002_5_Cindy Reed Documents Submitted to Safety and Licensing
	0003_1_2025 PROPOSED Special Event Policy
	0003_2_2025 Special Event Fee Schedule - Appendix 1
	0003_3_Memo- 2025 Proposed Special Event Policy
	0003_4_2023 Special Event Cost Summary- SL
	Sheet2

	0003_5_Current -2024- Special Events License Application
	0004_1_MyMy_LLC.Alcohol.Class B_Beer_Class C_Wine.9.9.2024.REDACTED
	0005_1_Delaire's.Alcohol.Class B_Beer_Reserve_Liquor.4.10.24.REDACTED
	0006_1_Photo_Opp.Alcohol.Temp B_Beer_Wine.Fundraiser.10.18.2024.REDACTED

